
 1 

OFFICE OF THE SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 
Peterborough, New Hampshire 

 
CONTOOCOOK VALLEY SCHOOL BOARD 

 
Tuesday, March 21, 2006 

 
South Meadow School 

 
7 p.m. 

 
MINUTES 

 
 

     Board      Administration 
     Tom Welden, Beverly Bacon   Keith Burke, Supt. 
     Ray Cote, Michelle Rico,     Paul Bartolomucci, Asst. Supt. 
     Gail Cromwell, Christy Greene,    Marian Alese, BA 
     Bill McKinnon, Tom Welden,   Linda Potter, SpEd 
     Stewart Brock, Craig Hicks,   Sue Dell, CVHS 
     Butch Estey, Tom Lawless,    Dick Dunning, SMS 
     Bart Goodeve     Jeanie West, SMS 
       Rick Nannicelli, GBS 
       Sue Copley, PES 
       Pamela Matthews, BES 
       MaryEllen Stanley, FES 
       Tim Iwanowicz, GES 
 

 
1. Call to Order and Pledge of Allegiance 

Christy Greene nominated Tom Welden as Chairman of the Board. 
One nay responded.  All else were in favor.  Nomination passed. 

 
2.  Election of Officers 
     Tom Welden nominated Craig Hicks as Vice Chairman of the Board. 
     All in favor.  Unanimous 
 
3.  Minutes (Board Vote Required) 

a. February 28, 2006 & March 7, 2006 
     Butch Estey moved to accept the minutes of the February 28, 2006 minutes.   
     Stewart Brock second. 
     Gail Cromwell said that on page 2 of the February 28th minutes, the   
     motion should read “Gail Cromwell motioned that it is the sense of the Board 
     that should the laptop initiative pass that the Board will entertain a discussion  
     how to best purchase the equipment.”   
     All in favor. 



 2 

 
     Butch Estey moved to accept the minutes of the March 7, 2006 meeting.  
     Michelle Ricco second.  All in favor. 
 
4.  Public Comment 

a. Jimmy Cook 
Not present at tonightÕs meeting. 
 

b. Shelly Nelkens 
Suggested that Dr. Lynch, a pediatrician, come to discuss the effects of physical 
movement and the effects that it would have on learning.  After the laptop initiative, the 
thought was that children needed to move more, not sit in front of a computer.  Ms. 
Nelkens suggested that more physical education credit be added to the credit 
requirement to graduate.  For example, Tai Chi could be implemented into the morning 
routine to help ward off obesity. 
 
Tom Welden thanked everyone who has supported him.  He said that he will work hard 
and listen.  He added that he was in the process of planning a Board retreat to plan 
where we want to go in the future.   
 
Christy Greene said that as a follow-up to Ms. Nelkens comments, when an opportunity 
arises to look at agenda items, we need to look at how often physical education is given 
at each grade level. 
Keith Burke passed around a list to the school board members asking them to verify 
and fill in the information needed regarding correct telephone numbers and email 
addresses. 
 
5.  Superintendent’s Report and Presentation of Business (Board Vote Required) 

a. Request to Accept a Gift or Donation (Board Vote Required) 
1. Hancock Elementary School PTO has received $67.24 from Target Ð 

Take Charge of Education to be used in support of programs that 
benefit students 

2. ConVal High School Ð Applied Technology Center has received from 
Maplewood Nursing Home 3 hospital beds to be used by the LNA 
class 

 
In addition to the gifts/donations listed above, BradyÕs American Bar & Grill has donated 
eight gift certificates @ $15.00 each to give away at ConVal High School home 
basketball games.  
Gail Cromwell moved to accept the gifts listed above.  Stewart Brock second.  
Craig said that one of the Brady’s gift certificates went to Mr. Dart who has 
attended all ConVal games forever.  Unanimous. 
 

b. Graduation Requirements 
Keith explained that the paper provided in tonightÕs agenda package (see attachment 
#1) with regard to graduation requirements is simply a paper trail from prior meetings. 
 



 3 

Bill McKinnon said that it should be put into policies to be looked up if needed. 
Mr. Burke also said that information titled ÒNew Hampshire Department of Education Ð 
Technical Advisory 3Ó (attachment #2) states that school must be in session 180 days.  
Hourly requirements can be used for special programs.  Time can be made up in that 
manner.  The school day can be extended in order to use SaturdayÕs as make-up days.  
Waivers will not be accepted for reasons other than an emergency.   
Gail Cromwell asked about flexibility.  Mr. Burke said that extended learning 
opportunities, or alternative methods, could be crafted for high school credit.   
 

c. Acceptable Use Policy 
Mr. Burke said that there was a request for acceptable use policies (see attachment #3)   
for review.  Also, Keith referenced a handout titled ÒDRAFTÓ for review.  (Attachment #4)  
Nothing can be done with either of these this evening.  We should review these 
documents for the future. 
 
Bill McKinnon suggested that at least one public hearing take place to gather 
information regarding internet access for students.  Gail Cromwell said that she would 
also like to look at the alternative credit policy as well at a future meeting.  She said that 
Òextended learningÓ might be the correct terminology.  Sue Dell said that the whole topic 
is being undertaken at ConVal including the physical education requirements.  She 
cautions not to move too fast ahead until this committee looks at these topics.  The NH 
School Board policy model is being studied to make a more comprehensive suggestion 
to the Board, which could include a public hearing.  Tom Welden requested a timeline.  
Sue Dell said that that could be done.  Christy Greene asked if the topic of extended 
learning credit applied beyond the high school.  Keith Burke said that he hadnÕt 
considered that.  Sue Dell said that some middle school students arrive at the high 
school with credits. 
 

d. Update on School Year Requirements – Latest Technical Advisory from 
State   

Discussed above in Òb.Ó (Graduation Requirements) 
 
 



 4 

e. Personnel (Board Vote Required) Please Bring Your Agenda With You 

 
Tom Welden explained the information above.  Tom Welden requested a motion. 
Butch Estey moved to delete Richard Solito from the list above.  Tom Welden 
asked for any other discussion. 
Two abstentions.  All else in favor.  Motion passes. 
 

f. Policy Procedures 
Discussed earlier. 
 

g. Monthly Calendar 
Tom Welden said that a short calendar will be devised to look at what is on our plate in 
a two-month time frame.  A shorter timeline will be produced. 
Ray Cote said that the resignations in ÒeÓ should be accepted with regrets and thanks. 
 
6.  Reports 

a. Principal 
 
Pamela Matthews said that picture writing has been taking place at Pierce Elementary.  
Sue Copley said that parent/teacher conferences are taking place at PES.  On Friday, 
PES/PBIS will attend a day long workshop in Bedford.  She thanked everyone for this 
effort.  This Saturday, PES will hold a pancake breakfast, book sale and indoor tag sale. 
Maryellen Stanley, FES, said that Read Across America has been successful as well as 
a recent talent show.  They too are holding a pancake breakfast.  Tom Welden thanked 
Mr. Dunning again for hosting the Board to dinner before this meeting.  Dick Dunning, 
SMS, said that mock trial competed last week and were successful.  Rick Nannicelli, 

Spring Athletics
CVHS Yrs. Start Date
3,239.41$      Nicholas Mayo V Boys Lacrosse 0 3/20/06

2,105.61$      Tara Vece JV Softball 0 3/20/06

2,105.61$      Tim McClelland JV Lacrosse 3+ 3/20/06

3,239.41$      Ken Cloutier V Girls Track 3+ 3/20/06

1,403.74$      Jim Aborn Assist. JV Track (Split x3) 3+ 3/20/06

1,403.74$      Steve Chabot Assist. JV Track (Split x3) 3+ 3/20/06

1,403.74$      TBD Assist. JV Track (Split x3)
GBS
1,248.68$      Richard Solito Co-coach Boys Baseball 3+ 3/20/06

1,248.68$      William Schofield Co-coach Boys Baseball 0 3/20/06
SMS
2,497.36$      Jeff Wing Boys Baseball 0 3/20/06

Retirement 2006-2007
AES

Jean Chance

Virginia Mierins
PES

Sandy Cook
SMS

Maurice LeFlem

Resignation
Sharon Buscher - Preschool Special Ed. Consultant



 5 

introduced Nicki Janulis, GBS and Brianne Hill, AES.  They took on coaching the spirit 
team three years ago and they competed for the first time this year.  They came in next 
to last in two competitions but came back, practiced and revised.  On March 11th they 
competed against other middle schools in NH and took home first place.   On March 
31st they will be at AES and GBS for anyone who wants to see them.  Rick Nannicelli 
said that he received a two page letter from a cheerleading parent.  The letter read that 
this success would not have been possible without Nicki and Brianne. 
Sue Dell said that the annual POPS concert took place last week.  The numbers of 
people that come to watch has grown greatly.  Almost two hundred students participate 
in this event.  For the fifth consecutive year ConVal has had a student win the German 
thing Bundestag-Kongress Award. 
Christy Greene said that as we talk about feeder teams in sports we should talk about 
the same in music.  Linda Potter said that the Special Olympic event took place last 
week.  The students were thrilled and excited.  Tony Geraci put out a box lunch for 
everyone.  Each student walked away with a medal and a hat.   
Tom Welden said that the high school will host a discussion on graduation requirements 
from 6:30 Ð 8:00 on Thursday as well as on April 7th from 8:00 Ð 9:00 a.m. 
 

b. Teacher 
Beth SanMartino said that Mr. Giovannangeli has been nominated teacher of the year 
this year.  Jan Farrington, Jon Manley and Jill Lawler received honorable mentions. 
 

c. Student 
None 
 

d. Education 
Christy said they met last night in the marketing class at CVHS and discussed the ATC 
and the programs offered.  Lynette Fagnan, Career Guidance Counselor, gave a 
presentation of the CHOICES software program.  Next year Lynette is looking forward 
to using this tool with the sophomores at ConVal.  There was a lot of enthusiasm.  Chet 
Bowles then gave a tour of the incubator space.  He mapped out a history of the space.  
An update of the cosmetology topic was given.  The next meeting will take place on 
Monday, April 3rd.  At that time the report will continue to be looked at as well as a 
timeline discussion.  Christy reminded everyone that they really need to turn out at the 
forums.  It has an impact on the final end.  Tom Welden said that the meeting was very 
informative.  Ray Cote added that the very first company that used the incubator space 
was on the front page of the Union Leader recently.   
 

e. Budget and Property 
Craig Hicks said that they have not met.  Keith said that the April calendar might be 
adjusted for the Board meetings because of school vacation.  The April Board meetings 
should be on the 11th and 25th.  The next Budget and Property meeting will take place 
on April 4th.  Tom Welden asked if the 25th could be used as a planning meeting.   
Craig thanked the voters for supporting the budget this year.  He also said that he is 
sorry the laptop initiative did not take place. 
Bill McKinnon said that he would like to comment on the quality of clean-air at CVHS. 
He got a copy of the clean air report relating to testing done at the high school in 



 6 

November of 2002.  He was surprised by the date of the report.  He asked Keith Burke 
about the reports suggestion stating that retesting should take place.  Keith said that 
retesting has not taken place but all of the recommendations have been implemented.  
Bill asked how we knew it was fixed.  Keith said that complaints have not been received.  
The retesting was a recommendation which is a common comment in reports.  Bill 
McKinnon asked about the CO2 levels reported and what has been done.  Keith Burke 
said that the report will be brought to the next meeting.  Bill McKinnon suggested that 
the report be brought to the April 4th Budget meeting. 
 

f. Personnel 
Dan Harper not present.  April 10th is the next scheduled Personnel meeting. 
 

g. Staff Development 
Tom Welden said that the next meeting will take place on April 10th.  Tom Welden said 
that Staff Development is a separate committee which is a daytime subcommittee 
meeting that has an approximate 3:30 start time.   
 

h. Steering 
Tom Welden said that they have not met in a long time.  We need to decide where we 
are going here.   
 

i. Communications 
Mr. Welden said that Nan Fornal was our communications rep.  They did a great job of 
getting word out.  This is another area that will need to be filled.  Tom handed out a 
committee listing and asked each board member to add their name in areas of interest 
to them.  Stewart Brock commented that the date change affects the next meeting at 
FES.  Ms. Stanley said that the date was fine for FES. 
 
7.  Approval of Manifests (Board Vote Required)  
Marian certified that manifests 103 Ð 110 totaling $ 366,589.84 and sub run 124 Ð 126 
totaling $ 27,510.09 and Payroll 18A & B and 19 totaling $ 2,116,066.85 have been 
reviewed and found to be proper charges against the Contoocook Valley School District 
for goods or services received and have been properly processed prior to their submittal 
to the School Board. 
Craig Hicks moved to approve the manifests.  Stewart Brock second.  
Unanimous.   
  
8.  Non-Public Session:  RSA 91-A:3,IIc 

a.  Negotiations 
b.  Personnel 

Beverly Bacon motioned to go into non-public for matters of negotiations and 
personnel at 8:14 p.m.  Unanimous. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Brenda Marschok 
 



 7 

 


